# wPublic Document Pack



To: Members of the Corporate

Governance Committee

Date: 18 September 2012

Direct Dial: 01824712575

e-mail: dcc\_admin@denbighshire.gov.uk

#### **Dear Councillor**

You are invited to attend a meeting of the CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE to be held at 9.30 am on WEDNESDAY, 26 SEPTEMBER 2012 in CONFERENCE ROOM 1B, COUNTY HALL, RUTHIN.

Yours sincerely

G. Williams Head of Legal and Democratic Services

## **AGENDA**

# PART 1 - THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE INVITED TO ATTEND THIS PART OF THE MEETING

#### 1 APOLOGIES

# 2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business identified to be considered at this meeting.

## 3 URGENT MATTERS

Notice of items, which in the opinion of the Chair should be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972.

# **4 MINUTES** (Pages 3 - 10)

To receive the minutes of the Corporate Governance Committee meeting held on the 5<sup>th</sup> September, 2012 (copy enclosed).

# **5 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2011/2012** (Pages 11 - 14)

To consider a report by the Head of Finance and Assets (copy enclosed) which sought formal approval of the Statement of Accounts. The audited set of accounts and auditors report will follow.

#### **MEMBERSHIP**

#### Councillors

Raymond Bartley Stuart Davies Martyn Holland Gwyneth Kensler Jason McLellan David Simmons

# Lay Member

Paul Whitham

## **COPIES TO:**

All Councillors for information Press and Libraries Town and Community Councils

#### CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Minutes of a meeting of the Corporate Governance Committee held in Conference Room 1a, County Hall, Ruthin on Wednesday, 5 September 2012 at 9.30 am.

#### **PRESENT**

Councillors Raymond Bartley, Stuart Davies, Gwyneth Kensler, Jason McLellan (Chair) and David Simmons

#### ALSO PRESENT

Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill (Lead Member for Finance and Assets), Head of Legal and Democratic Services (RGW), Head of Internal Audit Services (IB), Audit Manager (BS), Head of Finance and Assets (PM), Technical Accountant (RJ) and Committee Administrator (KEJ) together with Wales Audit Office Representatives (DO & AV)

#### 1 APOLOGIES

Paul Whitham, Lay Member

### 2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

No declarations of personal or prejudicial interest had been raised.

#### 3 URGENT MATTERS

No urgent matters had been raised.

#### 4 MINUTES

The minutes of the Corporate Governance Committee held on 11 July 2012 were submitted.

**RESOLVED** that the minutes of the meeting held on 11 July 2012 be received and approved as a correct record.

# 5 APPOINTMENT OF REPRESENTATIVE ON CORPORATE EQUALITIES GROUP

The Head of Legal and Democratic Services provided a brief overview of the responsibilities of the Corporate Equality Group which met on a quarterly basis together with membership details. Nominations for a representative and named substitute from this committee were sought to sit on that Group.

After consideration it was -

**RESOLVED** that Councillor Martyn Holland be appointed the committee's representative on the Corporate Equality Group and Councillor Stuart Davies be appointed as substitute member.

#### 6 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

The Head of Internal Audit Services (H:IAS) submitted a report (previously circulated) updating members on the latest progress of the Internal Audit Service in terms of service delivery, assurance provision, reviews completed, performance and effectiveness in driving improvement.

The H:IAS highlighted particular areas of the report as follows –

- progress in delivering the Internal Audit Strategy for 2012/13
- recent internal audit reports issued in respect of Ysgol Dinas Bran, Llangollen and Welsh Government – Adult Community Learning Provision 2011 – 12
- management response to issues raised by Internal Audit, and
- Internal Audit performance and key measures.

Members noted the good progress made against the Internal Audit Strategy and the need to revise the Strategy as appropriate in order to reflect the Council's changing priorities. The committee was also pleased to note the two positive audit reports received since their last meeting showing a high assurance rating. The H:IAS advised of a number of audit reports which were close to completion which would be circulated to committee members shortly. In terms of management's response to issues raised by Internal Audit there were currently no actions outstanding or exceeding the three month deadline and the system was working well. Finally reference was made to the key measures which were currently on target for completion.

During consideration of the report the H:IAS clarified particular issues in response to members' questions thereon, particularly regarding the status and remit of various audit assignments. The committee also discussed a number of specific issues with the H:IAS as follows –

- members considered the six high risks in the Corporate Risk Register and the H:IAS reported upon progress of work in those individual areas. He reminded members that the Register would be updated on a regular basis and Internal Audit would assess whether the risks were being robustly managed and addressed. The following two risks were discussed in more detail –
  - the risk that strategic ICT infrastructure did not enable improvement and support change – the Wales Audit Office had undertaken some work on the ICT Strategy which would reduce the amount of work required from Internal Audit Services
  - the risk that the time and effort invested in collaboration was disproportionate to the benefits realised – members highlighted the importance of this piece of work and concerns that some initial areas of collaborative working had ceased, and the need to ensure that collaboration was relevant and appropriate. The H:IAS explained that Internal Audit work was usually planned three months in advance with

no start date allocated for this audit as yet. He was aware that some services had undertaken self assessments on collaborative working which could be utilised. It was explained that the earlier collaborative projects had been initiated without the robust processes which had since been introduced under the Partnership Framework. New projects required a business case and assessment by the Collaboration Board. The Wales Audit Office Representative (AV) added that it was important to ensure clarity and mapping of processes for partnership arrangements and how they were managed

- with regard to Home to School Transport (a collaboration service between Denbighshire and Conwy) the H:IAS explained that Internal Audit had been asked to look at the service with Conwy's Audit Team because of financial issues identified in Conwy. He assured the committee that Denbighshire's Home to School Transport service was good and that any problems identified had been in Conwy's area. In response to questions the H:IAS confirmed that any financial difficulties experienced by Conwy would not impact on Denbighshire and that the final audit report would be publicly It was noted that there had been some negative publicity regarding Conwy's service and concerns were expressed Denbighshire's reputation might suffer by association once the report was published. In order to mitigate the potential for negative publicity it was suggested that a press release or similar approach might prove useful and that members be issued with a briefing paper. It was also suggested that service performance be taken into account when the merits of collaboration were being assessed. The H:IAS agreed to raise the management of those issues directly with the Joint Head of Highways and Infrastructure and advised of the intention to submit the final audit report to Conwy's Audit Committee on 25 September. Accordingly members agreed it would be timely for this committee to consider the report at their meeting on 26 September
- reference was made to the impact of welfare reform on the county and the Audit Manager confirmed that work had been carried out in Revenues and Benefits in that regard. The Heads of Revenues & Benefits and Finance & Assets had been attending meetings of the Area Member Groups to share statistical information and discuss the impact on each area. Such information was available to all members.

Finally the H:IAS advised that any issues members wished to raise should be brought to the attention of Internal Audit or the relevant service area to look into in the first instance.

## **RESOLVED** that -

- (a) subject to members' comments above, the progress report on the Internal Audit Service be received and noted, and
- (b) the final audit report on the Home to School Transport service be submitted to the committee's next meeting on 26 September, 2012.

### 7 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME

A report by the Head of Legal and Democratic Services (H:L&DS) was submitted (previously circulated) outlining the committee's forward work programme.

The H:L&DS advised that the Annual Report on 'Your Voice' would not be available for the committee's next meeting on 26 September and had subsequently been scheduled for 14 November. The Head of Internal Audit Services reminded members that the audit report on Home to School Transport needed to be scheduled for 26 September. The Wales Audit Office Representative (AV) indicated that there would be future reports forthcoming from the Wales Audit Office and he would arrange for their inclusion within the committee's work programme as appropriate.

Members agreed to the amendments and wished to retain the flexibility of their work programme to allow for the inclusion of any urgent or emerging issues requiring the committee's attention. Consequently it was –

**RESOLVED** that, subject to the amendments and agreements referred to above, the forward work programme be approved.

At this juncture (10.05 a.m.) the committee adjourned for a refreshment break.

#### 8 TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT

Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill, Lead Member for Finance and Assets introduced the report (previously circulated) and provided some background information on the Council's treasury management functions and the role and responsibility of the Corporate Governance Committee in that regard. In view of the scale and complexity of treasury management, regular updates and training would be provided for the committee to aid members' understanding and enable effective scrutiny of those functions.

The Head of Finance and Assets (H:F&A) drew members' attention to a timetable of reports and training for the committee (paragraph 2.2.1 of the report) together with reporting arrangements to Council and Cabinet. In guiding members' through the report, the H:F&A explained each of the issues in detail to aid the committee's understanding of the complexities involved within treasury management activities and provide a working knowledge of those particular functions. The main report included individual reports on the following areas —

# Paper on Borrowing (Appendix 1) -

The H:F&A referred to the timeliness of this paper given that members would be discussing financing of the Corporate Plan after Full Council the following week. In considering the Council's aspirations for capital investment for future years it was important that members had an understanding of borrowing. The H:F&A explained why and how the Council borrowed and provided details of the strategy adopted.

The presentation on borrowing covered –

- background to the legal situation in terms of borrowing
- borrowing only permitted for capital purposes to build new assets or to improve/repair existing assets
- capital expenditure could be financed by grants, contributions and capital receipts but any shortfall had to be met by borrowing
- the different types of borrowing (Internal/External) and the elements and proportions of each type together with the level of borrowing over the last five years
- the current level of debt and details of the various individual loans varying in length from 1 to 50 years together with the basis of those loans (Maturity/Equal Instalment of Principal/Annuity) and the maturity profile of that debt together with details of interest rates payable
- details of the elements of the Capital Financing Budget (approximately £12m) set aside to cover the cost of borrowing
- the principles on which the treasury management strategy was based to ensure that the Council did not borrow more than was needed and could afford to pay back the debt which included setting prudential indicators to determine borrowing limits and to measure affordability, and
- the source of the Council's current debt with loans linked to future revenue streams and reference to interest rates for loans and their calculations.

Members took the opportunity to ask questions and discuss a number of issues with the H:F&A arising from his presentation to which he responded as follows –

- in comparison with other local authorities the Council's borrowing proportion was somewhere in the middle, but had been distorted somewhat by the money spent on housing stock as detailed in the Housing Revenue Account
- the Council's credit limit was set by Full Council
- confirmed the intention to include revenue implications in costing the Corporate Plan
- elaborated upon the Private Finance Initiative which had been used previously by local authorities as a means of funding schemes which was no longer in favour
- reported upon the Council's reserves and balances advising that approximately £7.2m was available in general balances with over £20m in reserves which had been set aside for specific purposes.

Members also noted that the vast majority of the Council's debt had been taken out by predecessor authorities in the 1980s and 1990s (approximately £100m against total borrowing of £134.39m). The H:F&A elaborated upon the impact of the different types of loans on the Council's finances and members discussed the merits of each loan type. There had been a shift in recent years from Maturity Loans to Equal Instalment of Principal Loans to ensure debt was being paid off on a regular basis. Members considered the various risks associated with borrowing together with the benefits which could be achieved as a result. Examples of capital investments in line with the Council's priorities were discussed including schools, highways and extra care housing and the potential savings generated from investments as a result in particular areas. It was accepted that those issues would

be discussed further by councillors at the session on financing the Corporate Plan the following week.

# Annual Treasury Management Report 2011/12 (Appendix 2) –

The H:F&A presented the Annual Treasury Management Report which provided details of the Council's treasury management activities and an overview of the economic background for the year. It also reported upon the risk implications of treasury decisions and transactions and confirmed compliance with treasury limits and Prudential Indicators. The H:F&A elaborated upon the following elements contained within the report –

- borrowing activity and strategy to use mainly internal resources instead of external borrowing as the most cost effective means of funding capital expenditure
- investment activity and level of the Council's investments at the start and the
  end of the year with low interest rates continuing to have a significant impact
  on the investment return earned by the Council; investment objectives
  focused on security, liquidity and yield with security being the main objective
  for investment, and
- compliance with prudential indicators.

In response to a question regarding the depreciation of assets, members were advised that the Council did not charge depreciation by law because of the potential for figures to be manipulated. Instead a charge was made against assets based on a particular formula. In addition, asset sales were not included in the revenue budget but had to be kept separate by law.

## Treasury Management Update Report 2012/13 (Appendix 3) -

The H:F&A presented the Treasury Management Update Report which provided details of the treasury management activities during 2012/13 including the Economic Outlook; Risks, Activity, Controls and Future activity. Members' attention was drawn to the following points –

- the volatile financial markets and position in Europe
- risk management strategies to safeguard the Council's investments
- the maturity profile of the Council's investments which was currently limited to seven days and consequently returns remained low
- robust auditing of treasury management by both Internal Audit and the Wales Audit Office on a regular basis. The Internal Audit review undertaken in February 2012 had concluded that processes and procedures were robust, well established and followed meticulously with key risks effectively managed
- the Council intended to reduce its investment balances and use temporary borrowing as a means of funding short term cash flow requirements.

The H:F&A responded to members' questions as follows –

- reported upon the officers responsible and safeguards in place when making investments which focused more on cash flow management in the current financial environment rather than strategic investment
- the need for a debate on the nature and purpose of reserves and balances to ensure its most effective use which was linked to the forthcoming discussion on the Corporate Plan timetabled after Full Council the following week
- there was no guidance on minimum balances and it was a matter for individual Councils to set their own level of financing
- agreed that borrowing for individuals and corporate bodies was completely different and members needed to consider what they wanted to achieve and how they were prepared to realise those achievements.

The Head of Legal and Democratic Services (H:L&DS) reported that he had received an e-mail from Lay Member Paul Whitham advising that he had been pleased to note the training and updates planned for members of the committee. He had also queried whether treasury management was subject to annual and formal risk assessments. In his address the H:F&A had elaborated upon the robust and regular audit reviews undertaken on the function which the H:L&DS agreed to report back directly to Mr. Whitham. The H:F&A added that in addition to the regular auditing of the function the department had their own risk register and reported to the Corporate Governance Committee on a quarterly basis.

The presentation had been well received by members and at its conclusion the committee was keen to learn more about the treasury management function and processes and highlighted the need for members to gain a greater understanding of those activities. During consideration of their training requirements the H:F&A confirmed that sessions could be held before meetings to build an understanding of the subject and regular updates would be provided to the committee. Councillor Julian Thompson-Hill added that it had been agreed previously that such training be mandatory for committee members.

Finally the Chair thanked the H:F&A for his interesting and informative presentation and the knowledge imparted which gave members a greater understanding and insight into treasury management activities.

### **RESOLVED** that -

- (a) the Paper on Borrowing (Appendix 1 to the report) be noted;
- (b) the performance of the Council's Treasury Management function during 2011/12 and its compliance with the required Prudential Indicators as reported in the Annual Treasury Management Report 2011/12 (Appendix 2 to the report) be noted, and
- (c) the Treasury Management Update Report 2012/13 (Appendix 3 to the report) be noted.

The meeting concluded at 12.35 p.m.

This page is intentionally left blank

# Agenda Item 5

Report To: Corporate Governance Committee

Date of Meeting: 26<sup>th</sup> September 2012

Lead Officer: Paul McGrady, Head of Finance & Assets

Report Author: Richard Weigh, Chief Accountant

Title: Approval of the Statement of Accounts 2011/12

# 1. What is the report about?

The council has a statutory duty to produce a statement of accounts that complies with approved accounting standards. The audited accounts have to be formally approved by elected members on behalf of the council.

# 2. What is the reason for making this report?

The financial statements for 2011/12 were approved, subject to audit, by the Chief Finance Officer in June 2012. The Accounts and Audit Regulations require that the Council formally approves the audited accounts, containing the external auditor's opinion, by the end of September. The approval of the audited accounts has been delegated to the Corporate Governance Committee.

The Statement of Accounts is produced in compliance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) produces the IFRS based Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting and the council has produced the 2011/12 accounts in compliance with the Code.

Compliance with IFRS has been a requirement since 2010/11 and new standards or requirements continue to be introduced. For the 2011/12 accounts, the most notable change was the introduction of a new class of assets called heritage assets. The council has therefore amended its accounting policies and disclosures within the accounts in compliance with the Code of Practice.

The accounts include an unqualified audit opinion and audit certificate.

#### 3. What are the Recommendations?

That elected members approve the Statement of Accounts 2011/12 which is Appendix 1 to this report.

At the meeting, the Chair and Chief Finance Officer will be required to sign the Accounts and the Letter of Representation.

# 4. Report details

The accounts presented have been produced in compliance with the required accounting standards.

International Financial Reporting Standards are a suite of accounting standards used across the world. IFRS has been developed for the private sector but in theory the vast majority of transactions are the same in accounting terms regardless of the sector. As there are some areas where public sector accounting treatment diverges from IFRS (because for example of legislative requirements), an additional set of standards has been introduced to deal with these provisions called the International Public Sector Accounting Standards.

The accounts were made available for audit as required and have been open to public inspection. The accounts have been audited by the Wales Audit Office who will present an overview of their findings and assessment of the process in a report to the committee.

The audit process resulted in some technical adjustments and other corrections and amendments. More details of these will be presented in the auditor's report.

## 5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities?

The publication of the Statement of Accounts underpins the financial stewardship and governance of the council and therefore supports all council services and priorities.

# 6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services?

There are no additional cost implications as a result of this report.

## 7. What consultations have been carried out?

The Wales Audit Office has worked closely with the Finance team to ensure the timely and successful finalisation of the audit.

#### 8. Chief Finance Officer Statement

The Statement of Accounts has again received an unqualified audit opinion. This is a significant achievement given the scale and complexity of the accounts. There was a major exercise in 2010/11 to successfully produce accounts compliant with new international standards and the process of implementing IFRS will continue as additional requirements are introduced. Internal procedures will be reviewed annually to ensure that the council continues to deliver high quality financial statements.

# 9. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them?

The council would be in breach of its statutory duty if it could not approve the accounts by 30<sup>th</sup> September.

## 10. Power to make the Decision

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires that the council has proper financial management arrangements in place. The Accounts & Audit Regulations require that the audited accounts are approved by 30<sup>th</sup> September.

This page is intentionally left blank